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General information about the academic discipline
	Name of the academic discipline
	Economy and foreign economic relations of Ukraine

	Code and name of specialty
	D3 "Management"

	Level of higher education
	first (bachelor's) level of higher education

	Discipline status
	optional 

	Number of credits and hours
	3 credits / 90 hours.
Lectures:
Seminar classes:
Independent work of students:

	Terms of studying the discipline
	

	Language of instruction
	Ukrainian

	Type of final control
	test

	Discipline page on the website
	



General information about the teacher. Contact information.
	Kryvoberets Maryna Mykolaivna
	

	Academic degree
	Candidate of Economic Sciences
	

	Academic title
	Associate Professor 
	

	Position
	Head of the Department of Tourism Organization
	

	Disciplines taught by the NPP
	Introduction to the specialty "Management"; Management of foreign economic activity, foreign economic activity
	

	Areas of scientific research
	management, international tourism, economics, innovative approaches in business management
	

	Links to identifier registries for scientists
	ORCID: https://orcid.org/0000-0001-5229-2672
Google Scholar: https://scholar.google.com.ua/citations?user=b9OiTccAAAAJ&hl=uk&oi=sra
	

	Teacher contact information:
	Teacher contact information:

	Email:
	marina_krivoberets@ukr.net
	

	Contact phone number
	+380955208848
	

	Teacher's portfolio on the website of the department / institute / academy
	https://maup.com.ua/ua/pro-akademiyu/instituti/institut-ekonomiki/kafedra-organizacii-turistichnoi-diyalnosti1/krivoberec.html
	



Course abstract. This course provides an introduction to the system of knowledge in the field of economics and foreign economic activity of our country. In modern conditions of economic development, it is important to form a system of theoretical knowledge (concepts, doctrines) regarding the specifics of the current stage of economic development of Ukraine. The academic discipline provides an understanding of the architecture of the institutional system of the economy of Ukraine, structural restructuring, directions of reforming the economic system; the main trends in the development of foreign economic relations of Ukraine with various regions and countries of the world; allows you to master innovative practices of interpreting a mass of information regarding the search for ways to resolve contradictions that arise at the current stage in the foreign economic activity of Ukraine.
The purpose of the academic discipline is to form a holistic system of professional knowledge, skills, abilities and other competencies of higher education students regarding the peculiarities of the current state of the Ukrainian economy, the prerequisites for its inclusion in the process of economic globalization, competitive advantages in international markets, and the main forms of foreign economic relations of the state in the context of globalization.
Objectives of the academic discipline: formation of an in-depth system of theoretical knowledge (concepts, doctrines) regarding the specifics of the current stage of economic development of Ukraine; understanding the architecture of the institutional system of the economy of Ukraine, structural restructuring, directions of reforming the economic system; mastering the main trends in the development of foreign economic relations of Ukraine with various regions and countries of the world; mastering innovative practices of interpreting a mass of information regarding the search for ways to resolve contradictions that arise at the current stage in the foreign economic activity of Ukraine.
Prerequisites of the academic discipline. The study of the academic discipline "Economics and Foreign Economic Relations of Ukraine" is based on the knowledge and skills obtained by students at the bachelor's level, namely: economic theory, economic history, foreign economic activity, regional economics, business law, business analytics
Postrequisites of the academic discipline. The knowledge and skills acquired by students in the process of studying the academic discipline "Economics and Foreign Economic Relations of Ukraine" contribute to the successful study by higher education students of a number of other academic disciplines aimed at the formation of professional knowledge and skills: modern economic theories, global economy.


Content of the academic discipline (full-time education)

	No.
	Topic name
	Teaching methods/assessment methods

	Content module 1.
"Theoretical foundations of the study of foreign economic relations»
	Teaching methods: verbal (educational lecture; conversation; educational discussion);
inductive method; deductive method;
analytical method; synthetic method;
practical (working with economic models, statistical data, graphs);
explanatory and illustrative; reproductive;
problem-based presentation method;
partially searchable;
research;
interactive methods (analysis of economic situations; discussions, debates; brainstorming; situational modeling; practicing modeling skills);
case method (analysis of real economic situations, problem finding, proposal of solutions, construction of models);
modeling of professional activities (building economic models, forecasting, scenario modeling).

Assessment methods:
oral control (oral questioning, evaluation of participation in discussions, other interactive learning methods); written control (tests, independent work, analytical tasks, essays);
test control (closed-form tests: test-alternative, test-correspondence, tasks for data and model analysis); method of self-control and self-assessment;
case study evaluation;
evaluation of project and laboratory work (modeling of economic processes, forecasting).

	Topic 1.
	Foreign economic relations of Ukraine: essence, features and subjects
	

	Topic 2.
	Socio-economic transformations in Ukraine during the years of independence
	

	Topic 3.
	Trade and economic relations of Ukraine
	

	Topic 4.
	Economic potential of Ukraine
	

	Topic 5.
	The world economy and the patterns of its development
	

	Content module 2.
"System of micro- and macroeconomic relations of Ukraine"
	

	Topic 6.
	International monetary, financial and credit relations of Ukraine
	

	Topic 7.
	Ukraine's participation in international investment processes
	

	Topic 8.
	Ukraine in the processes of international labor migration
	

	Topic 9.
	Foreign economic policy of Ukraine and problems of its integration into the world
	

	Topic 10.
	Ukraine's cooperation with regional integration groupings
	

	
	
	

	Modular test 

	Form of assessment: credit



Technical equipment and/or software. The educational process uses classrooms, a library, a multimedia projector and a computer for conducting lectures and seminars with presentation elements. Studying individual topics and completing practical tasks requires access to information from the World Wide Web, which is provided by a free Wi-Fi network.
Forms of control methods.
Monitoring the progress of students is divided into current and final (semester).
Current control carried out during practical and seminar classes. Its purpose is to systematically check:
- understanding and mastering the theoretical foundations of economic processes;
- ability to apply knowledge to build models and analyze economic data;
- skills in diagnosing and forecasting economic processes;
- use of specialized software for modeling and processing statistical data.
Forms of student participation in the educational process, which are subject to current control:
- speeches and presentations on the analysis of economic processes;
- oral reports on the analysis of economic cases;
- additions, questions to the person answering;
- systematic work in seminar classes and activity during discussions;
- participation in discussions, brainstorming, and interactive forms of learning;
- analysis of economic data, statistical indicators, economic and mathematical models;
- written assignments (tests, tests, analytical and abstract papers);
- preparation of abstracts, theses, analytical notes;
- independent study of discipline topics and lecture materials.
Current control methods:
-oral control (survey, conversation, report, message);
- written control (test work, analytical report, essay, completion of tasks for building models or processing statistics);
- combined control (oral and written combination to assess understanding and practical skills);
- presentation of independent work or case analysis;
- observation of activity and participation in practical classes;
- test control (closed and open tasks, analysis of graphs and models);
- working with problem situations (analytical cases, scenario modeling of economic processes).
Assessment system and requirements.
Table of points awarded to higher education students*

	

Topics
	
Ongoing knowledge assessment
	Final control
	

	
	
	Modular test
	Credit**
	Overall number of points

	
	Topic 1
	Topic 2
	Topic 3
	Topic 4
	Topic 5
	Topic 6
	Topic 7
	Topic 8
	Topic 9
	Topic 10
	

20
	

20
	

100

	Work in a seminar class
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	
	
	

	Independent work
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	
	
	



*The table contains information about the maximum points for each type of academic work of a higher education applicant.
When assessing the mastery of each topic for current educational activities, the student is given grades taking into account the approved assessment criteria for the relevant discipline.
The criteria for assessing the learning outcomes of students and the distribution of points they receive are regulated by the Regulations on the Assessment of Academic Achievements of Students of Higher Education at PJSC "Higher Education Institution "MAUP".
Module control is carried out in the last lesson of the module in written form, in the form of testing.
Evaluation criteria for the module test in the academic discipline "Economy and Foreign Economic Relations of Ukraine":
When evaluating a module test, the volume and correctness of the tasks are taken into account:
- the grade "excellent" (A) is given for the correct completion of all tasks (or more than 90% of all tasks);
- a grade of "good" (B) is given for completing 80% of all tasks;
- a grade of "good" (C) is given for completing 70% of all tasks;
- a grade of "satisfactory" (D) is given for the correct completion of 60% of the proposed tasks;
- the grade "satisfactory" (E) is given if more than 50% of the proposed tasks are completed correctly;
- an "unsatisfactory" (FX) grade is given if less than 50% of the tasks are completed.
Failure to appear for a module test - 0 points.
The above scores are converted into rating points as follows:
"A" - 18-20 points;
"B" - 16-17 points;
"C" - 14-15 points;
"D" - 12-13 points.
"E" - 10-11 points;
"FX" - less than 10 points.
The final semester assessment in the discipline "Economics and Foreign Economic Relations of Ukraine" is a mandatory form of assessing students' learning outcomes. It is conducted within the time frame specified by the curriculum and covers the scope of material specified by the course program.
The final assessment is carried out in the form of a test. A student who has completed all the required work is allowed to take the semester assessment.
The final grade is based on the student's performance during the semester. The student's grade consists of points accumulated from the results of the current assessment and incentive points.
Students who have completed all required assignments and received a score of 60 points or higher receive a grade corresponding to the grade received without additional testing.
For students who have completed all the required tasks but received a score below 60 points, as well as for those who wish to improve their score (result), the teacher conducts a final work in the form of a test during the last scheduled lesson in the discipline in the academic semester.
Assessment of additional (individual) types of educational activities. Assessment of additional (individual) types of educational activities. Additional (individual) types of educational activities include the participation of applicants in scientific conferences, scientific circles of applicants and problem groups, preparation of publications, participation in All-Ukrainian Olympiads and competitions and International competitions, etc. in excess of the tasks established by the relevant work program of the academic discipline.
By decision of the department, students who participated in research work and performed certain types of additional (individual) educational activities may be awarded incentive (bonus) points for a specific educational component.
Assessment of independent work
The total number of points received by a student for completing independent work is one of the components of academic success in the discipline. Independent work on each topic, in accordance with the course program, is evaluated in the range from 0 to 3 points using standardized and generalized knowledge assessment criteria.
Assessment scale for independent work (individual assignments) assessment criteria.
	Maximum possible assessment of independent work (individual tasks)
	Execution level

	
	Perfectly
	Good
	Satisfactorily
	Unsatisfactorily

	3
	3
	2
	1
	0


Forms of assessment include: ongoing assessment of practical work; ongoing assessment of knowledge acquisition based on oral responses, reports, presentations and other forms of participation during practical (seminar) classes; individual or group projects requiring the development of practical skills and competencies (optional format); solving situational tasks; preparing summaries of independently studied topics; testing or written exams; preparing draft articles, conference abstracts and other publications; other forms that ensure comprehensive mastery of the curriculum and contribute to the gradual development of skills for effective independent professional (practical, scientific and theoretical) activity at a high level.
To assess the learning outcomes of a higher education applicant during the semester, a 100-point, national and ECTS assessment scale is used.
Final assessment scale: national and ECTS 
	Total points for all types of learning activities
	ECTS assessment
	National scale assessment

	
	
	for exam, course project (work), practice
	for credit

	90 – 100
	А
	perfectly
	passed

	82 – 89
	В
	good
	

	75 – 81
	С
	
	

	68 – 74
	D
	satisfactorily
	

	60 – 67
	Е
	
	

	35 – 59
	FХ
	unsatisfactory with the possibility of reassembly
	not passed with the possibility of retaking

	0 – 34
	F
	unsatisfactory with mandatory re-study of the discipline
	not passed with mandatory re-study of the discipline



Course policy.
To successfully complete the course "Economy and Foreign Economic Relations of Ukraine", the student must:
- regularly attend lectures and practical classes;
- work systematically, systematically and actively in lectures and practical classes;
- make up for missed classes or unsatisfactory grades received in classes;
- to fully perform the tasks that the teacher requires to prepare, their quality is appropriate;
- perform control and other independent work;
- adhere to the norms of academic conduct and ethics.
The course "Economics and Foreign Economic Relations of Ukraine" involves the assimilation and observance of the principles of ethics and academic integrity, in particular, an orientation towards preventing plagiarism in any of its manifestations: all works, reports, essays, abstracts and presentations must be original and authorial, not overloaded with quotations, and must be accompanied by references to primary sources. Violations of academic integrity are considered to be: academic plagiarism, self-plagiarism, fabrication, falsification, copying, deception, bribery, and biased evaluation.

Recommended sources of information.
Main literature:
1 Bublyk E.O. Financial openness of transitive economies: monograph. Kyiv: NAS of Ukraine, State Institution "Inst. of Economics and Forecasting NAS of Ukraine". 2020. 324 p.
2. Hrebelnyk O. P. Fundamentals of foreign economic activity: textbook. 5th ed., revised and supplemented. Irpin: University of the State Fiscal Service of Ukraine, 2019. 410 p.
3. Economic security of the state: essence and directions of formation: monograph / L. S. Shevchenko, O. A. Hrytsenko, S. Makuha; ed. L. S. Shevchenko. Kharkiv: Pravo, 2009. – 312 p.
4. Economic theory: a textbook / L. S. Shevchenko, O. A. Hrytsenko, O. S. Marchenko and others; ed. by L. S. Shevchenko. 2nd ed. Kharkiv: Pravo, 2019. 268 p.
5. Kozak Yu. G., Saveliev E. V. at all. Foreign economic activity: textbook. 6th ed., revised and supplemented. Kyiv: Center for Educational Literature, 2019. 292 p.
6. Kopiyka V. V., Shynkarenko T. I. The European Union: history and principles of functioning:. manual. / edited by L. V. Hubersky. Kyiv: Znannya, 2009. 751 p.
7. International Economics: a textbook / edited by S. M. Makukha. Kharkiv: Pravo, 2012. 192 p.
8. Structural changes as the basis for inclusive development of the economy of Ukraine: monograph edited by Doctor of Economics I.M. Bobukh. Kyiv: NAS of Ukraine, State Institution "Inst. of Economics and Forecasting NAS of Ukraine". 2020. 516 p. URL: http://ief.org.ua/docs/mg/332.pdf
9. Formation of "smart specialization" in the economy of Ukraine: collective monograph edited by Corresponding Member of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine I.Yu. Yegorov. Kyiv: National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine, State Institution "Institute of Economics and Forecasting of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine". 2020. 279 p. URL: http://ief.org.ua/docs/mg/331.pdf
10. I. V. Yakovyuk, Legal Basis of Integration into the EU: General Theoretical Analysis: Monograph. Kharkiv: Pravo, 2013. 760 p.
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1. Macroeconomic balance to ensure the sustainability of public finances and economic growth in Ukraine: a collection of monographs edited by Dr. of Economics, Corresponding Member of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine M.I. Skrypnychenko. Kyiv: National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine, State Institution "Institute of Economics and Forecasting of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine". 2020. 648 p. URL: http://ief.org.ua/docs/mg/327.pdf
2. Modernization of economic policy for the development of spheres of activity and markets: in 4 parts. NAS of Ukraine, State Institution "Inst. of Economics and Forecasting NAS of Ukraine". – Electronic resource. Part 2. Trade policy: prospects for Ukraine's participation in the "One Belt, One Road" initiative / edited by Doctor of Economics, Corresponding Member of the NAAS of Ukraine T.O. Ostashko. Kyiv: NAS of Ukraine, State Institution "Inst. of Economics and Forecasting NAS of Ukraine". 2020. 334 p. URL: http://ief.org.ua/docs/mg/326.pdf
3. Nechyporuk, L. V. Theoretical and methodological foundations of globalization research. Bulletin of the Yaroslav the Wise Law Academy of Ukraine. Series: Economic Theory and Law. 2011. Issue 4 (7). pp. 26-34.
4. Nechiporuk L.V. Financial business consulting in the context of internationalization of the financial sector. New stages of development of modern science in Ukraine and EU countries: monograph / edited by authors. 2nd ed. Riga, Latvia : “Baltija Publishing”. 2019. p. 296-312.
5. Nechyporuk L.V. Financial inclusion in the context of insurance services. Financial and credit activities: problems of theory and practice. 2018. No. 3. P. 411 - 417.
6. Nechyporuk L. V. Educational technologies for training specialists in economics in conditions of uncertainty and risks. Innovative Educational Technologies: European Experience and its Application in Training in Economics and Management. Internship. Riga: Baltic Research Institute of Transformation Economic Area Problems, 2020. 184 p., pp. 109-112.
7. Prodius O., Nechyporuk L, Stoliar O., Ilyina A., Stoyanov P. International corporate strategies and entrepreneurial paradigms within the framework of global business integration. Academy of Entrepreneurship Journal. Volume 26, Issue 4, 2020.
8. Kryvoberets M.M. Tourism development in the post-pandemic period: trends and support measures. Scientific works of the IAPM. Economic Sciences Series. Issue 1 (64)– K.: SE “Publishing house “Personal”, 2022. P. 48-53.
9.Pereguda Yu.A., Kryvoberets M.M. State support for tourism enterprises in the context of martial law and post-war recovery. Scientific journal on economics and business “Entrepreneurship and Innovation”. Issue 23, 2022. Kyiv: Helvetica Publishing House, 2022. – P. 16-20.
10.Pereguda Yu.A., Kryvoberets M.M. Imbalances of the national tourism market in the context of new economic changes (development and forecasts of investment inflows). Scientific journal on economics and business “Entrepreneurship and Innovation”. Issue 24, 2022. Kyiv: Helvetica Publishing House, 2022. – P. 17-22.
11.StanislavDovgy,OksanaRadchenko,OleksandrRadchenko,AlexanderKuczabski&MarynaKryvoberets. "Legitimacy Crisis" and its Impact on the Stability and Security of the System of Public Authorities of the State during the Formation of the Global Information Space// National Security Drivers of Ukraine Information Technology, Strategic Communication, and Legitimacy 2022. Springer Nature Switzerland// AG 2023. 237-256. URL:https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-031-33724-6_14.(Scopus)
12. Liudmyla Sokolenko, Olesia Dolynska, Maryna Kryvoberets, Liudmyla Sakhno and Olesia Fedoruk.Organizing accounting in the establishments and tourism sphere// Review of economics and finance, 2023, Vol. 21, No.1.947-954.DOI:https://doi.org/10.55365/1923.x2023.21.  (Scopus)
13. Igor Paryzkyi, Perehuda Yuliia, Kryvoberets Maryna, Hurina Olena and Glybovets Victoria. Smart Economy in the Regions of Ukraine: Current Trends and Development Vectors. Review of Economics and Finance, 2023. Vol. 21. 1380-1388. DOI:https://doi.org/10.55365/1923.x2023.21.151(Scopus)
14.Martseniuk, Larysa; Kryvoberets, Maryna; Melnychuk, Svitlana; Lihostaiev, Viacheslav; Dobrovolskyi, Andrii.The Role of Staycation Tourism in Mitigating the Environmental Impact of Recreation in Ukraine.IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science.IOP Conf. Series: Earth and Environmental Science 1429 (2024) 012015. P.1-11.DOI: 10.1088/1755-1315/1429/1/012015 (Scopus)
15.Karakasidi, O., Balashov, A., Perehuda, Y.,Kryvoberets, M., Semenets-Orlova, I., Klochko, A. (2024). Readiness of Educational Managers and Teachers to Enhance Distance Education and Knowledge Management. In: Shchokin, R., Iatsyshyn, A., Kovach, V., Zaporozhets, A. (eds) Digital Technologies in Education. Studies in Systems, Decision and Control, vol 529. Springer, Cham.https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-031-57422-1_3 (Scopus)
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Information resources on the Internet:
1. Electronic archive-repository of the Yaroslav the Wise National Law University. URL:http://dspace.nlu.edu.ua/ 
2. Official web portal of the executive authorities of Ukraine. URL:http://www.kmu.gov.
3. Official portal of the Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. URL:http://rada.gov.ua/ 
4. Official website of the State Statistics Service of Ukraine. URL:http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua 
5. Official website of the National Securities and Stock Market Commission. URL:http://www.ssmsc.gov.ua 
6. Official website of the scientific journal "Economy of Ukraine". URL:http://www.economukraine.com.ua/index.php 
7. Official website of the collection of scientific works "Economic Theory and Law". URL:http://econtlaw.nlu.edu.ua 
8. Official website of the scientific and theoretical journal "Economic Theory". URL:http://etet.org.ua 
9. Official website of the M. V. Ptukha Institute of Demography and Social Research of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine. URL:http://www.idss.org.ua 
10. Official website of the Institute of Economics and Forecasting of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine. URL:http://ief.org.ua 
11. Official website of the Institute for Economic Research and Policy Consulting. URL:http://www.ier.com.ua
12. Official website of the International Monetary Fund. URL:http://www.imf.org/external/ 
13. Official website of the Ministry of Economic Development, Trade and Agriculture of Ukraine. URL:http://www.me.gov.ua 
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